

Standing Orders

Standing Orders

Approved by the Board

February 2021 amended November 2021

Probation Board for Northern Ireland - Standing Orders

INDEX

1. INTRODUCTION

2. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

- 2.1 Location and frequency of ordinary meetings
- 2.2 Conduct of meetings
- 2.3 Days on which meetings shall not be held
- 2.4 Special meetings
- 2.5 Notice and summons of ordinary meetings
- 2.6 Adjournment of meetings
- 2.7 Record of attendance at meetings
- 2.8 Chair of meeting

3. QUORUM OF BOARD

- 3.1 Quorum
- 3.2 Lack of quorum

4. ORDER OF BUSINESS

- 4.1 Approval of agenda
- 4.2 Variation to the Approved Agenda

5. MINUTES

- 5.1 Submission of minutes to next meeting
- 5.2 Attendance at meeting
- 5.3 Approval of minutes
- 5.4 Accuracy of minutes
- 5.5 Signed minutes

6. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE APPROVED MINUTES

- 6.1 Reports on matters arising
- 6.2 Questions and comments on matters arising

7. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

7.1 Ordinary meetings

8. VOTING

- 8.1 Voting
- 8.2 Decision by majority
- 8.3 Mode of voting

9. ADMISSION OF STRANGERS

- 9.1 Presence of strangers
- 9.2 Stranger addressing meeting
- 9.3 Direction that business be not commenced or proceeded with

10. DISORDERLY CONDUCT

- 10.1 Misconduct at meeting
- 10.2 General disturbance

11. CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

- 11.1 Governing provisions
- 11.2 Registration of interests
- 11.3 Maintenance of the Register
- 11.4 Reviewing and updating entries in the Register of Interests
- 11.5 Declaring an interest
- 11.6 Non-participation in and withdrawal from meeting
- 11.7 Non-financial interests
- 11.8 Interests of related parties (including family)
- 11.9 What is a substantial interest? the 'reasonable person' test
- 11.10 Chair's adjudication
- 11.11 Recording of disclosure in minutes

12. DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL MATTERS

- 12.1 Disclosure of document marked 'in confidence' or bearing security classification
- 12.2 Disclosure of information prejudicial to the interests of the Board
- 12.3 Requirements of Publication Scheme

13. COMMITTEES

13.1 Constitution of and delegation to committees

- 13.2 Terms of service of committees
- 13.3 Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
- 13.4 Dissolution of committees
- 13.5 Application of Standing Orders to committees
- 13.6 Committees established
- 13.7 Appointment of Committee Chair and Deputy Chair
- 13.8 Special meetings of committees
- 13.9 Committee reporting to the Board
- 13.10 Committee terms of reference
- 13.11 Chair responsible
- 13.12 Sub-committees
- 13.13 Emergency Committee

14. EMERGENCY COMMITTEE

15. WORKING GROUPS AND STEERING GROUPS

16. MEMBERS

17. SEALING OF DOCUMENTS

- 17.1 Affixing of Common Seal
- 17.2 Authentication of Common Seal
- 17.3 Register of sealing documents

18. EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS NOT UNDER SEAL

18.1 Execution of contracts and instruments not under Seal

19. AMENDMENT AND REVOCATION OF STANDING ORDERS

19.1 Adjournment of motion to amend or revoke Standing Orders

20. SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

20.1 Suspension by two-thirds majority

21. INTERPRETATION OF STANDING ORDERS

- 21.1 Ruling of Chair not to be challenged
- 21.2 Definition of terms
- 21.3 Responsibilities under legislation not altered by Standing Orders

APPENDICES

- Appendix A: Procedure for conduct of business by formal motions
- Appendix B: Terms of Reference for Audit Risk and Assurance Committee (ARAC)
- **Appendix C:** Terms of Reference for Policy and Practice Committee (PPC)
- **Appendix D:** Terms of Reference for Corporate Resources Committee (CRC)
- Appendix E: Terms of Reference for Remuneration Committee

PROBATION BOARD FOR NORTHERN IRELAND

Standing Orders

1 INTRODUCTION

- **1.1** These Standing Orders were made under Schedule 1 paragraph 7 of The Probation Board (Northern Ireland) Order 1982 and were approved by the Board on XX . Any statutory provision, regulation or direction by the Minister shall have precedence if there is any conflict with these Standing Orders.
- **1.2** The Secretary shall provide a copy of these Standing Orders to all members of the Board on appointment and to senior managers on request.
- **1.3** These Standing Orders reflect the manner in which the Board shall give effect to the requirements as outlined in the **Management Statement and Financial Memorandum** applicable to PBNI and will take account of any requirements that exist within the regulatory and governance framework within which PBNI operates.

2 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

2.1 Location and frequency of ordinary meetings

Meetings of the Board shall be held at least six times per year at such places, dates and times as shall be determined by the Board. The meetings shall ordinarily be held at the headquarters, but the Board will meet elsewhere in Northern Ireland at least once each year.

The Chair or, in his or her absence, the Deputy Chair may make such alterations in the arrangements for any such meeting as in his or her opinion are justified.

2.2 Conduct of meetings

At the discretion of the Chair, meetings of the Board may be conducted in any other way as seems appropriate in the circumstances. This would include allowing one or more members to participate through video conferencing or other similar means. In such cases, members participating will be deemed to be 'present' at the meeting for the purposes of the record of attendance or establishing the quorum.

2.3 Days on which meetings shall not be held

Meetings of the Board shall not normally take place on Public or Bank Holidays, Saturdays or Sundays.

2.4 Special meetings

The Chair or, in his or her absence, the Deputy Chair may call a special meeting of the Board at any time of which at least three days' notice shall be given.

The Chair of the Board or, in his or her absence, the Deputy Chair shall call a special meeting of the Board on receipt of a requisition in writing for that purpose which specifies the business to be transacted at the meeting and is signed by at least six members of the Board.

No business shall be transacted at a special meeting other than that specified in the notice.

2.5 Notice and summons of ordinary meetings

The Secretary shall convene meetings of the Board by issuing to each member, electronically or otherwise and not less than five working days before the meeting, a notice detailing the place, time and business to be transacted at the meeting, together with copies of all relevant papers (where available at the time of issue of the agenda).

2.6 Adjournment of meetings

The Board may adjourn any meeting to a later hour on the same day, or to any other day and hour, subject to meeting the minimum requirements as outlined above.

If any meeting is adjourned in accordance with this paragraph, the adjourned meeting shall be deemed a continuation of the original meeting. If a meeting is adjourned sine die, any business left unfinished shall be postponed until the next ordinary meeting. Where the date fixed for the adjourned meeting so permits, the Secretary shall issue a notice of the adjourned meeting to each member of the Board on the first working date following the adjournment.

2.7 Record of attendances at meetings

The names of the members, officials and visitors present at a meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

2.8 Chair of meeting

At a meeting of the Board, the Chair of the Board if present shall preside. If the Chair of the Board is absent from a meeting of the Board, the Deputy Chair of the Board if present shall preside.

If both the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Board are absent from a meeting of the Board, the remaining board members will appoint a temporary chair for that meeting. The temporary Chair will be selected by the other members present, who will vote by means of a show of hands.

The duty of the person presiding at a meeting of the Board or its Committees is to ensure that the Standing Orders are observed, to preserve order, to ensure fairness between members and to determine all questions of order and competence. The ruling of the person presiding shall be final and shall not be open to question or discussion.

3 QUORUM OF BOARD

3.1 Quorum

The quorum of the Board shall be five members.

3.2 Lack of quorum

If during any meeting of the Board, the Chair declares that there is not present a quorum, the meeting shall be adjourned, or, if the meeting continues, no decisions shall be taken. The consideration of any business not transacted shall be adjourned to a time fixed by the Chair at the time the meeting is adjourned and the provisions of Standing Order 2.6 relating to adjourned meeting shall apply, or, if a time is not fixed, to the next ordinary meeting of the Board.

4. ORDER OF BUSINESS

4.1 Approval of agenda

The Chair will approve the agenda and may restrict the number of items on the agenda in order to ensure the proper disposal of business at a meeting. The normal order of agenda items will include:

- Welcome and opening remarks
- Apologies

- Conflicts of Interest
- Minutes
- Matters Arising
- Chair's Update
- Chief Executive Update
- Correspondence
- Committee Business
- Board Secretary Business
- Any Other Business
- Date of next meeting

This list is not exhaustive and other items will be added subject to the approval of the Chair.

4.2 Variation to the Approved Agenda

The order of business at any meeting of the Board may be varied at the direction of the Chair. Issues not on the agenda will be dealt with at the Chair's discretion.

5 MINUTES

5.1 Submission of minutes to next meeting

The minutes of the proceedings of a meeting of the Board shall be drawn up and submitted for agreement at the next meeting where they will be signed by the Chair if and when agreed.

5.2 Attendance at meeting

The names of the members and staff present at the meeting shall be recorded and if necessary the part at which they join, leave or resume their place at the meeting shall also be noted.

5.3 Approval of minutes

The Chair shall put the question that the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the date stated be approved as a correct record.

5.4 Accuracy of minutes

No discussion shall take place upon the minutes except upon their accuracy or where the Chair considers discussion appropriate. If no question as to their accuracy arises then or if it is raised then as soon as it has been disposed of, the Chair shall sign the minutes.

5.5 Signed minutes

Any minutes purporting to be signed as mentioned in Standing Order 5.3 shall be received in evidence without further proof.

6. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE APPROVED MINUTES

6.1 Reports on matters arising

Arising from such approved minutes, the Chair may report or require a member, the Chief Executive, or the Board Secretary to report upon a matter and there may be a discussion on such report.

6.2 Questions and comments on matters arising

The Chair shall permit members to ask questions, or comment, on matters arising from the approved minutes.

7. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

7.1 Ordinary meetings

Conduct of normal business by the Board will be by facilitated by an agreed agenda that will be provided at least 5 working days before the meeting. When a member wishes to place an item for discussion on the agenda, he/she should inform the Board Secretary at least 10 working days in advance of the meeting.

Where a member wishes to propose a motion to the board, this must be done following the procedures outlined in Appendix A.

8. VOTING

8.1 Voting

Every item or question which requires approval at a meeting shall be determined by the Chair seeking the general assent of members or, where consensus cannot be reached, the Chair will proceed to make the decision by means of a vote.

8.2 Decision by majority

If voting is necessary to reach a decision, every question shall be determined by a majority of the votes of the members present and voting on the question, except where otherwise provided in these Standing Orders.

8.3 Mode of voting

The mode of voting shall be by show of hands and, on a requisition of any member of the Board made before the vote is taken and supported by three other members, the voting on any such question shall be recorded so as to show whether each member present gave his or her vote for or against that question or abstained from voting.

8.4 Chair's casting vote

The Chair at any meeting of the Board shall, in addition to his or her right to vote as a member of the Board, have a casting vote.

8.5 Recording of dissenting votes

Any member dissenting from a resolution passed by the Board shall be entitled to have his or her name recorded in the minutes, provided he or she then and there so requests.

9. ADMISSION OF STRANGERS

9.1 Presence of strangers

A stranger (being a person who is not a member or a staff member of the Board) shall not be present at a meeting without the permission of the Chair, and if present may be required by the Chair to withdraw from the meeting at any stage.

9.2 Stranger addressing meeting

A stranger permitted to be present at a meeting of the Board may not address that meeting without the permission of the Chair.

9.3 Direction that business be not commenced or proceeded with

While any stranger is present, the Chair may direct that any business be not then commenced or proceeded with and he or she may intervene in any debate to give such a direction.

10 DISORDERLY CONDUCT

10.1 Misconduct at meeting

If, at a meeting, any member of the Board misconducts himself or herself by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Chair, or by behaving irregularly, improperly, or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of the Board, the Chair may ask that the member should comply with the requirements of good conduct. If a member continues to ignore the requirements for good conduct the Chair may ask that the member leave the meeting, or if necessary adjourn the meeting.

10.2 General disturbance

In the event of a general disturbance which in the opinion of the Chair renders the due and orderly despatch of business impossible, the Chair in addition to any other power vested in him or her may, adjourn the meeting of the Board for such period as he or she in his or her discretion shall consider necessary.

11 CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

11.1 Governing provisions

Members of the Board shall observe all their obligations under the Probation Board (Northern Ireland) Order 1982 Schedule 1 paragraph 9, the Code of Conduct and Practice for Board Members and these Standing Orders.

11.2 Registration of interests

Persons appointed to the Board as members shall give notice of any registerable interests under the Code, or to make a declaration that they have no registerable interest in each relevant category as specified in the standard form to be supplied by the Secretary.

11.3 Maintenance of the Register

The Secretary will be responsible for maintaining the Register of Interests and for ensuring it is available for public inspection at the principal offices of the Board at all reasonable times and will be included on the Board's website.

11.4 Reviewing and updating entries in the Register of Interests

Where the Code of Conduct and Practice for Board Members requires an interest to be registered, or an amendment to be made to an existing interest, this shall be notified to the Secretary. The Secretary will write to members annually to request them to formally review their entry in the Register of Interests.

11.5 Declaring an interest

Any member who has a clear and substantial interest in a matter under consideration by the Board or a Committee should declare that interest at any meeting where the matter is to be discussed, whether or not that interest is already recorded in the Register of Interests. Such declarations should make clear the interest and the nature of it.

11.6 Non-participation in and withdrawal from meeting

Where such an interest is of a direct or indirect financial nature, the member involved should withdraw from any meeting and not speak, participate in or otherwise seek to influence any decision taken by the Board or Committee relating to the matter under discussion unless the matter is simply under consideration by the Board as part of a report from a committee and does not itself become the subject of a separate debate.

Members who are also employees or directors or in some other capacity of bodies which receive funds from the Board may participate in general discussions and decisions regarding such bodies, but should withdraw and not participate in any discussion or decision which relates principally to the particular institution with which they are associated. The Chair should take particular care to ensure that no possible conflict of interest in this area is allowed to arise.

11.7 Non-financial interests

Where a member has an interest which is not financial but which is relevant to the Board's business, that interest should be declared. Where the interest is substantial, the member involved should withdraw from discussions and decisions relating to that interest. Where an interest arises from membership of a public body and is not of a financial nature The chair will make a decision in relation to the degree that the member can take part in the discussion and the decision making.

11.8 Interests of related parties (including family)

In all cases, 'members' interests cover the interests of any related parties, including family members or members of the same household who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, Board or Committee members.

If the member concerned is present at any meeting of the Board, or its Committees, at which any question relating to or affecting the appointment, remuneration, tenure or conditions of service, promotion, status, conduct, dismissal, suspension, retirement or superannuation of the person to whom he or she stands in a relevant family relationship is under consideration, he or she must withdraw from that meeting while the question is being considered.

11.9 What is a substantial interest? - the 'reasonable person' test

In all circumstances, Board and Committee members should ask themselves whether a member of the public, knowing the facts of the situation, could reasonably conclude that the interest involved might influence the approach taken to the actions of the Board or Committee. If so, the interest is sufficient to oblige the member to withdraw.

In case of doubt as to whether a member has a substantial interest, members should err on the side of caution and make a declaration or seek guidance from the Secretary as to whether a declaration should be made.

11.10 Chair's adjudication

If any question shall arise as to what in any circumstances constitutes a 'substantial' interest and/or the appropriate action to be taken, the Chair or Committee Chair, shall adjudicate on the issue and his or her decision shall be final.

11.11 Recording of disclosure in minutes

The minutes of a meeting must record any disclosure made and any subsequent withdrawal from the meeting.

12 DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL MATTERS

12.1 Disclosure of document marked "in confidence" or bearing security classification

A member shall not disclose to any person the whole or any part of the contents of any agenda, report or other document which is marked "in confidence" or which bears a security classification unless and until the document has been made available to the public or the press by or on behalf of the Board.

12.2 Disclosure of information prejudicial to the interests of the Board

A member shall not disclose to any person, other than a member of the Board, information upon any matter coming to his or her knowledge by virtue of his or her office as a member when such disclosure would prejudice the interests of the Board.

12.3 Requirements of Publication Scheme

In determining which papers should be regarded as confidential, the Board shall take into account its obligations under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 in respect of the requirements of its Publication Scheme.

13 COMMITTEES

13.1 Constitution of and delegation to committees

The Board may provide for the discharge, under its general direction, of any of its functions, by a committee of the Board, or by one or more members or members of staff. Thus the Board may constitute committees of such number of its members as the Board may appoint and may delegate to any committee any of the functions of the Board.

13.2 Term of service of committees

Unless appointed for a specific purpose, in which case it shall cease to exist upon completion of the task assigned to it, a committee shall continue for the remainder of the Board's term of office.

13.3 Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

The Board shall establish and maintain an Audit and Risk Assurance Committee (ARAC) consisting of at least three members. The Chair of the ARAC should be a board member and there should be at least one other board member on the Committee. If required, the Committee may seek further independent, non-executive membership from sources other than the Board in order to ensure an appropriate level of skills and experience.

13.4 Dissolution of committees

The Board may at any time dissolve a Committee except the ARAC.

13.5 Application of Standing Orders to Committees

The Standing Orders of the Board shall, with such modifications as are contained in this Standing Order, apply to the Committees of the Board and any relevant Sub-Committees.

13.6 Committees established

The Board has established the following committees and approved their terms of reference:

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee – terms of reference at Appendix B

Policy and Practice Committee - terms of reference at Appendix C

Corporate Resources Committee – terms of reference at Appendix D

Remuneration Committee – terms of reference at Appendix E

The terms of reference of committees may be altered or amended at any time by resolution of the Board.

13.7 Appointment of Committee Chair and Deputy Chair

The Chair and Deputy Chair of each committee shall be appointed by the Board.

13.8 Special meetings of committees

A special meeting of any committee shall be called if requested in writing by the Chair of the Committee or the Chair of the Board or on receipt of a request for such a meeting signed by not less than three members of the committee, or two members in the case of the Audit and Risk Committee.

13.9 Committee reporting to the Board

Each meeting of a committee shall be reported to the Board and the minutes of such meeting, or draft minutes cleared by the Chair of the Committee, shall normally be circulated with the notice convening the appropriate meeting of the Board.

13.10 Committee terms of reference

The Board shall approve the terms of reference of each of its committees.

13.11 Chair responsible

The Chair of each committee shall be responsible to the Board for the general direction of the business entrusted to that Committee and shall take charge of, or in his or her absence arrange for, the moving of the adoption of the report of the Committee at the meeting of the Board to which it is submitted.

13.12 Sub-committees

Each committee may appoint sub-committees for specific purposes. A subcommittee shall meet as often as is necessary for the purposes for which it was appointed. The minutes and any report of a sub-committee shall be submitted to the parent committee for confirmation before being brought before the Board.

13.13 Emergency Committee

Separate provisions for an Emergency Committee are set out in Section 14.

14 EMERGENCY COMMITTEE

14.1 An Emergency Committee comprising the Board Chair, Board Deputy Chair and the Chair of each Committee is authorised to act in the event of a serious matter arising which requires an urgent decision by the Board when it is not practical to convene a full Board meeting. The Deputy Chair of any Committee may attend if the Chair of that Committee is not available.

- **14.2** The quorum of the Emergency Committee shall be three members.
- **14.3** The Committee shall be convened by the Board Chair or Board Deputy Chair. If they are both unavailable, a Committee Chair may convene the Emergency Committee.
- **14.4** The Emergency Committee should report to the Board as soon as possible.

15. WORKING GROUPS AND STEERING GROUPS

- **15.1** The Board may at any time appoint a working group or a steering group to carry out a specific task or tasks on behalf of the Board or any of its Committees.
- **15.2** The Board shall appoint the members of any working group or steering group. The Board shall approve terms of reference for any working group or steering group.
- **15.3** A working group or steering group shall prepare minutes of its meetings and shall report to the Board directly or, as appropriate, through a committee.

16 MEMBERS

16.1 Members of the Board shall adhere to the Code of Conduct and Practice for Board Members.

17 SEALING OF DOCUMENTS

17.1 Affixing of Common Seal

The Common Seal of the Board is to be used for the purposes of executing legal documents which are required to be under seal. All documents, to which the Common Seal shall require to be affixed, shall be sealed in pursuance of a resolution of the Board (or of a Committee to which the Board has delegated powers in this behalf) in relation to the subject matter of the document. However, a resolution authorising the doing of any act, which should be recorded or effected by means of a document under seal, shall be sufficient authority for sealing any document necessary to record or give effect to the resolution.

17.2 Authentication of Common Seal

The Common Seal shall, when applied to a document, be authenticated by the signature of the Chair or Deputy Chair together with the signature of the Secretary.

17.3 Register of sealing of documents

An entry of every sealing of a document shall be made and consecutively numbered in a register to be provided for that purpose and shall record the persons authenticating the sealing.

18 EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS NOT UNDER SEAL

18.1 Execution of contracts and instruments not under Seal

Any contract or instrument which, if entered into or executed by an individual, would not require to be under seal may be entered into or executed on behalf of the Board by the Secretary.

19 AMENDMENT AND REVOCATION OF STANDING ORDERS

19.1 Adjournment of motion to amend or revoke Standing Orders

Any motion, notice of which has been duly given, to amend or revoke these Standing Orders shall, when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without discussion until the next regular meeting of the Board.

19.2 Amendment or revocation by simple majority

The Standing Orders may then be amended or revoked by a simple majority of the members present and voting.

20 SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

20.1 Suspension by two-thirds majority

Standing Orders may be suspended at any meeting, so far as regards any business at such meeting, provided that at least two-thirds of the members present and voting decide to do so.

21 INTERPRETATION OF STANDING ORDERS

21.1 Ruling of Chair not to be challenged

The ruling of the Chair as to the construction or application of any of these Standing Orders or as to any proceedings of the Board or Committee shall not be challenged at any meeting of the Board or Committees.

21.2 Definition of terms

Throughout these Standing Orders, unless inconsistent with the context, the terms below shall have the following meanings:

"Board" means the Probation Board for Northern Ireland. **"Chair**" means the Chair for the time being of the Board.

Except where otherwise stated, "**Chair**" may, in the absence of the Chair of the Board from a particular meeting, also mean the member acting as Chair of that particular meeting. "**Deputy Chair**" means the Deputy Chair for the time being of the Board. "**Member**" means a member of the Board. "**Committee**" means a committee established by the Board.

"Secretary" means the Secretary for the time being of the Board.

"Days" means working days.

"**Present**" means physically present or present by means of video conference, telephone conference or any other electronic or other means approved by the Chair of the Board or Chair of Committee.

21.3 Responsibilities under legislation not altered by Standing Orders

These Standing Orders do not alter, in any way, the responsibilities laid upon the Board, its members and members of staff by **The Probation Board (Northern Ireland) Order 1982** or by any other legislation.

Appendices

Appendix A: Procedure for conduct of business by formal motions.

Appendix B: Terms of Reference of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

Appendix C: Terms of Reference of Policy and Practice Committee

Appendix D: Terms of Reference of Corporate Resources Committee

Appendix E: Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee

Appendix A: Procedure for conduct of business by formal motions.

Conduct of normal business by the Board will be by facilitated by an agreed agenda that will be provided at least 5 working days before the meeting. When a member wishes to place an item for discussion on the agenda, he/she should inform the Board Secretary at least 10 working days in advance of the meeting.

Conduct of business by formal motions will be regarded as an exception rather than the norm.

Notice of every motion, shall be given to the Secretary in writing by the member or members of the Board giving the notice at least 10 days before the next meeting of the Board.

1. BUSINESS NOT REQUIRING MOTIONS

1.1 The following is a list of normal business categories that do not require the creation of a formal motion

- (a) Arrangements for meetings of the board
- (b) Appointment of a Chair of the meeting at which the decision is made
- (c) Business relating to the accuracy of the minutes
- (d) The order of business
- (e) Remission to a committee

(f) Appointment of a committee or members thereof, occasioned by an item mentioned in the summons to the meeting

(g) Appointment to a committee of any member other than occasioned by an item mentioned in the summons to the meeting

(h) Adoption of reports and recommendations of committees or officers and any consequent resolutions

(i) That leave may be given to withdraw a motion

- (j) Amendments to motions
- (k) That the board proceed to the next business
- (I) That the question be now put
- (m) That the debate be now adjourned
- (n) That the board be now adjourned
- (o) Authorising the sealing of documents
- (p) Suspending standing orders, in accordance with Standing Order 20

(q) That a member named under Standing Order 10.1 be not further heard or to leave the meeting

- (r) Giving consent of the board where consent of the board is required by the Standing Order
- (s) That a stranger be required to withdraw from the meeting

(t) Where a committee has sat since the last meeting of the board and time has not allowed the preparation of minutes or a report of the committee for circulation to members prior to the next meeting of the board, the Chair of the committee concerned or a member of that committee or officer of the board authorised by the Chair of the committee may raise at such last mentioned meeting of the board any urgent business requiring its decision.

1.2 Written Notice

Notice of every motion, other than a motion which under paragraph 1.1 may be moved without notice, shall be given to the Secretary in writing by the member or members of the Board giving the notice at least 10 days before the next meeting of the Board.

1.3 Motions in summons for meeting

The Secretary shall set out in the summons for every meeting of the Board all motions of which notice has been duly given in the order in which they have been received.

1.4 Motion not moved

If a motion thus set out in the summons be not moved either by a member who gave notice thereof or by some other member on his or her behalf, it shall, unless postponed by consent of the Board, be treated as withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice.

1.5 Referral of motions to Committee

If the subject matter of any motion of which notice has been duly given comes within the province of any Committee or Committees of the Board, it shall, upon being moved and seconded, stand referred without discussion to such Committee or Committees, or to such other Committee or Committees of the Board as the Board may determine, for consideration and report.

Provided that the Chair may, if he or she considers it convenient and conducive to the despatch of business and with the consent of the majority of members present, allow the motion to be dealt with at the meeting at which it is brought forward.

2. OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING TO MOTIONS

2.1 Relevancy of motions

Every motion shall be relevant to some matter in relation to which the Board has powers or duties or which directly affects the provision of services for which the Board is responsible.

2.2 Power to withdraw motions and amendments

A motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent of a seconder and of the Board, which shall be signified without discussion and no member may speak upon it after the mover has asked permission for its withdrawal, unless such permission shall have been refused.

2.3 Motions affecting persons employed by the Board

If any question arises at a meeting of the Board as to the appointment, promotion, dismissal, salary or conditions of service, or as to the conduct of any person employed by the Board, it shall be considered by the Board in Committee unless it otherwise resolves.

2.4 Definition of an amendment

An amendment shall be relevant to the motion and shall be either to:

- (a) Refer a subject of debate to a Committee for consideration or reconsideration
- (b) Leave out words
- (c) Leave out words and insert or add others or
- (d) Insert or add words

but such omission, insertion or addition of words shall not have the effect of negating the motion before the Board.

3. RULES OF DEBATE

3.1 Motions and amendments to be reduced to writing and seconded

A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and seconded, and unless notice has already been given in accordance with paragraph 1.3 above, it shall, if required by the Chair, be put into writing and handed to the Chair before it is further discussed or put to the meeting.

3.2 Seconding a motion

A member when seconding a motion or amendment may, if he or she then declares the intention to do so, reserve the speech until a later period of the debate.

3.3 Mode of address

A member when speaking shall address the Chair and shall not be interrupted by any other member unless on a point of order. A member raising a point of order shall be heard and the question of order shall be disposed of before the subject be resumed or any other subject entered upon. Whenever the Chair rises, no member shall continue speaking nor shall any other member speak until the Chair is resumed.

3.4 Member to speak to the motion

A member shall direct his or her speech to the motion under discussion or an amendment thereof or to such motion as is permitted under paragraph 3.12 below or to a personal explanation or to the point of order.

3.5 Member may rise on a point of order

A member may rise on a point of order or in personal explanation, and shall be entitled to be heard forthwith.

3.6 Definition of a point of order

A point of order shall relate only to an alleged breach of a Standing Order or statutory provision and the member must state the way in which he or she considers it to have been broken and shall, if required by the Chair, specify the Standing Order or statutory provision in question.

3.7 Definition of a personal explanation

A personal explanation shall be confined to some material part of a former speech by a member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the present debate.

3.8 Member called to order

If any member while speaking be called to order, he or she shall cease to speak and shall not again address the Board until the Chair shall have disposed of the question of order.

3.9 Ruling of Chair on point of order

The ruling of the Chair on a point of order or the admissibility of a personal explanation shall not be open to discussion.

3.10 Addressing the Board

The Board during its sitting shall not, unless by permission of the Chair, be addressed by any person not a member of the Board.

3.11 Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time

Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at a time and no further amendments shall be moved until the amendment under discussion has been disposed of, provided that the Chair may permit two or more amendments to be discussed (but not voted on) together if circumstances suggest that this course would facilitate the proper conduct of the Board's business.

If an amendment be lost, other amendments may be moved on the original motion. If an amendment be carried, the motion as amended shall take the place of the original motion and shall become the motion upon which any further amendment may be moved. A member may with the consent of the Board signified without discussion:

(a) Alter a motion of which he or she has given notice or

(b) With the further consent of his or her seconder alter a motion which he or she has moved if in either case the alteration is one which could be made as an amendment thereto.

3.12 When a motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved

When a motion is under debate, no other motion shall be moved except the following:

- (a) To amend the motion
- (b) To adjourn the meeting
- (c) To adjourn the debate
- (d) To proceed to the next business
- (e) That the question be now put
- (f) That a member be not further heard
- (g) By the Chair under Standing Order 10.1 that a member do leave the meeting

3.13 Chair not to receive motion for a direct negative

The Chair shall not receive a motion for a direct negative to a question but on the conclusion of the debate, the question shall be put and resolved in the affirmative or the negative.

3.14 Mover's right to reply

The mover of the motion has a right to reply at the close of the debate on the motion immediately before it is put to the vote. If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original

motion shall also have a right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment and shall not otherwise speak on the amendment. The mover of the amendment shall have no right of reply to the debate on his or her amendment.

3.15 'That the Board proceed to the next business' 'That the question be now put' 'That the debate be now adjourned' 'That the Board do now adjourn'

A member may move without comment at the conclusion of a speech of another member, 'That the Board proceed to the next business', 'That the question be now put', 'That the debate be now adjourned', or 'That the Board do now adjourn' on the seconding of which the Chair shall proceed as follows:

(a) On a motion to proceed to the next business, unless in his or her opinion the matter before the meeting has been insufficiently discussed, he or she shall give the mover of the original motion a right to reply and then put to the vote the motion to proceed to the next business

(b) On a motion that the question be now put, unless in his or her opinion the matter before the meeting has been insufficiently discussed, he or she shall first put to the vote the motion the question be now put and if it is passed then give the mover of the original motion his or her right of reply under paragraph 3.14 above before putting his or her motion to the vote

(c) On a motion to adjourn the debate or the meeting, if in his or her opinion the matter before the meeting has not been sufficiently discussed and cannot reasonably be sufficiently discussed on the occasion, he or she shall put the adjournment motion to the vote without giving the mover of the original motion the right of reply on that occasion

3.16 Second motion to adjourn

A second motion that the Board do now adjourn or that a debate on a question be adjourned shall not be made within 30 minutes after the previous such motion unless it be moved by the Chair.

3.17 Resumption of adjourned debate

When an adjourned debate is resumed, the member who moved the adjournment shall be entitled to speak first.

3.18 Written notice of motion referred to committee

If a matter, which has been the subject of a written notice of motion by a member, is referred to a committee for consideration and, if the said member is not a member of that committee, he or she shall have the right to attend the meeting of the committee when the matter is considered and shall have an opportunity of speaking thereon.

13.19 Altering or rescinding of previous resolutions

A resolution of the Board which is found subsequently to be based on inaccurate or incomplete information may be altered or rescinded at a subsequent meeting of the Board, subject to the agreement of at least two-thirds of the members present and voting.

13.20 Motions to rescind or to same effect within six months

Subject to paragraph 13.19, no motion to rescind a resolution passed within the preceding six months nor any motion to the same effect as any motion within the preceding six months shall

be in order, unless permitted by special leave of the Chair or under notice in pursuance of paragraph 2.1 above signed by at least two-thirds of the members of the Board.

13.21 Motions following consideration of a report

Paragraph 13.20 shall not apply to motions moved following consideration of a report by any member, Committee or staff member of the Board.

Appendix B: Terms of Reference of the Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY BOARD – 19 FEBRUARY 2021

PROBATION BOARD FOR NORTHERN IRELAND

AUDIT AND RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. Remit and Constitution

- 1.1. Introduction
- 1.2. Role
- 1.3. Terms of Reference
- 1.4. Composition of Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
- 1.5. Establishment of Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
- 1.6. Relationship with Internal Audit
- 1.7. Relationship with External audit

2. Conduct of Business

- 2.1. Agenda
- 2.2. Frequency of Meetings
- 2.3. Complaints

1.1 INTRODUCTION

The Probation Board for Northern Ireland (the Board) has established an Audit and Risk Assurance Committee (ARAC) as a Committee of the Board. The ARAC supports the Board and Accounting Officer with regard to their responsibilities for issues of risk, control and governance and associated assurance through a process of constructive challenge.

The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee Handbook (NI) issued by the Department of Finance and Personnel (March 2014) sets out the five good practice principles (Membership; Independence; Objectivity and Understanding; Skills; Role of Audit and Risk Assurance Committee; scope of work communication and reporting) which Audit and Risk Assurance Committee should meet.

The ARAC will have an integrated governance approach encompassing financial governance, organisational governance, which are under pinned by sound systems of risk management.

The ARAC will support the Board and Accounting Officer by reviewing the completeness of assurance to satisfy their needs and by reviewing the reliability and integrity of the assurance.

1.2 ROLE

The Board is responsible for:

- 1.2.1 Management of its activities in accordance with laws and regulations: and
 - The establishment and maintenance of a system of internal control
 - designed to give reasonable assurance that
 - Assets are safeguarded
 - Waste and inefficiency are avoided

- Reliable financial information is produced
- Value for money is continuously sought
- 1.2.2 The ARAC assists the Board in these functions by providing an independent and objective review of:
 - Control systems
 - Information provided to the Board
 - Compliance with law, guidance and Code of Conduct and Code of Accountability
 - Governance processes within the Board

The ARAC is authorised by the Board to investigate or have investigated any activity within its Terms of Reference in performing these duties shall have the right, at all reasonable times, to inspect any books, records or documents including any email records of the Board.

It can seek any information it requires from any employee and all employees must cooperate with any request made by the ARAC. The only exception to this is client identifiable data that is required to be kept confidential.

The ARAC may seek authorisation from the Board to obtain outside legal or other independent advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary subject to the Board's procurement, budget and other requirements.

By giving reasonable notice, the ARAC may require the attendance of the officers or staff and auditors of the Board at any of its meetings.

The ARAC shall give assurance to the Board each year on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system on internal control in operation within the PBNI.

The Chair of the ARAC will report to the Chair of the Board, the Board and Accounting Officer on a regular basis on its work.

1.3 TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference will be reviewed at least three yearly (or as required) by the Board and the ARAC to ensure that its work is aligned with the business needs of the PBNI.

1.3.1 The ARAC shall undertake the following tasks:

- Review and recommend the Board approve the governance framework, any associated implementation plan and the Board's assurance framework
- Provide assurance to the Board that governance is being appropriate in line with governance framework and best practice
- Advise the Board of the strategic process for risk, control and governance and the governance statement (The practical arrangements are set out in the Appendix to these Terms of Reference.)
- Review and approve the internal audit work plan prior to the commencement of work
- Review verification reports and assurance reports from Internal Audit assignments and management's responses
- Monitor management's progress in meeting Internal Audit recommendations

- Prior to the external audit, discuss the audit plan with the Auditor including the reliance to be placed on Internal Audit
- Review the External Auditor's report to those charged with governance and management response
- Review the Annual Report and the Financial Statement prior to the signature by the Accounting Officer
- Periodically obtain the views of External and Internal Auditors on the work and effectiveness of the ARAC
- Seek annual assurance of the independence and effectiveness of the Board's external and internal auditors
- Consider any report of the Public Accounts Committee or the Comptroller and Auditor General involving the Board and review management's proposed response before presentation to the Board
- Bring to the Board's attention to value for money studies that have been done elsewhere which might be relevant and review the work of the Board in this area
- Consider and report back any matters referred to it by the Board by statutory and other bodies
- Give regular reports (both written and verbal) to the Board.
- Provide an annual report to the Board timed to support preparation of the Governance Statement in accordance with the NIAO Audit Committee selfassurance checklist
- Bring to the Board any areas of concern or recommendations.
- 1.3.2 The responsibility for internal control rests with management. The ARAC shall review its scope and effectiveness.
- 1.3.3 The ARAC shall also:
 - Review proposed changes to Standing Orders and standing financial instructions
 - Examine the circumstance associated with each instance when Standing Orders are waived
 - Review all proposed losses for write-off and compensation payments and make recommendations to the Board
 - Approve accounting policies and subsequent changes to them
 - Monitor the implementation of the Code of Conduct and Code of Accountability thus offering assurance to the Board of probity in the conduct of business
 - Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Board's Counter Fraud Programme and Whistle Blowing and Complaints processes

1.4 COMPOSITION OF THE ARAC

- 1.4.1 The Board shall appoint the Chair, Deputy Chair and Members of the ARAC. The Board Chair shall, as appropriate, put nominations to the Board for approval
- 1.4.2 The ARAC shall comprise a minimum of four Board members with a quorum of three. In exceptional circumstances and only with the approval of the Chair of the ARAC, a quorum can be two. A lay advisor may be appointed and shall attend meetings of the ARAC and shall participate fully in discussions but shall not be able to vote

- 1.4.3 None of the members shall be the Board Chair, although he/she may be invited to attend meetings that are discussing issues pertinent to the whole organisation. (Additionally, none of the ARAC should be a member of the Remuneration Committee without authorisation of the Board Chair).
- 1.4.4 The Accounting Officer, Chief Executive and Head of Finance of PBNI, the Internal and External Auditors, a representative from the Department, may attend the ARAC by invitation, and others may also be required to attend if deemed necessary by the ARAC.
- 1.4.5 Where possible at least one member of the ARAC shall have financial expertise
- 1.4.6 The Chair of the ARAC will ensure open lines of communication with other members, the Chair of the Board, Board Members, Heads of Internal Audit and External Audit
- 1.4.7 The ARAC will annually review the skills base to check they have the necessary skills required for an effective committee
- 1.4.8 Internal Audit and the representative of External Audit will have free and unqualified access to the Chair of the ARAC.
- 1.4.9 The ARAC will be provided with a secretary (in exceptional circumstance, this can be delegated with the permission of the Chair)

1.5 ESTABLISHMENT OF AN AUDIT AND RISK ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

1.5.1 The ARAC is to be constituted as a committee of the Board with the authority to act with independence, the Board should approve Its Terms of Reference and the approval recorded in the Board minutes.

The Members of the ARAC shall be appointed by the Board and shall hold office as long as the Board Chair deems beneficial to the work of the Board. At any time, any member of the ARAC may resign or be removed by the Board. The Board shall fill any vacancy promptly.

- 1.5.2 The ARAC meeting shall be conducted formally and minutes submitted to the Board at its next meeting.
- 1.5.3 The ARAC shall expect to meet at least four times per year. Agenda and briefing papers shall be prepared and circulated in sufficient time for members to give due consideration.
- 1.5.4 As part of one of the meetings, members shall consider the internal / external audit plans and at another meeting shall review the Annual Report of the External Auditor. There shall be an opportunity for the ARAC to meet Internal and External audit once a year without the Executive Team being present.

1.6 RELATIONSHIP WITH INTERNAL AUDIT

1.6.1 The ARAC recognises the service level agreement between the Board and Internal Audit. This reflects the working relationship between PBNI and Internal Audit.

- 1.6.2 The ARAC must obtain the necessary information to assure the Board that the systems of internal control are operating effectively and for this, they shall rely on the work of the Internal Audit together with the External Auditor and the work of the relevant Director.
- 1.6.3 The ARAC shall receive reports of findings on internal control, which shall form the basis of its conclusion and any recommendations.

The Chief Executive is responsible for the management of Internal Audit arrangements. The ARAC shall participate in the selection process when an internal audit service provider is changed.

1.6.4 The Chair of the ARAC will meet annually with the Head of Internal Audit.

1.7 RELATIONSHIP WITH EXTERNAL AUDIT

- 1.7.1 The ARAC shall rely upon the certification of the accuracy, probity and legality of the Annual Accounts provided by the External Auditor, combined with more detailed internal audit review systems and procedures and other monitoring reports provided by officers, in discharging its responsibilities for ensuring sound internal control systems and accurate accounts and providing such assurance to the Board.
- 1.7.2 The External Auditor shall provide an independent assessment of any major activity within his remit and a mechanism for reporting the outcome of value for money or regularity studies ARAC members shall raise any significant matters, which cause them concern.
- 1.7.3 The Northern Ireland Comptroller and Auditor General is the appointed External Auditor. He / She may appoint independent companies as external auditors. The ARAC has a duty to ensure that an effective external audit service is provided and officers shall offer advice to the Committee in relation to the working relationship and any issues raised will be addressed with external audit.
- 1.7.4 The Chair of the ARAC will meet annually with the External Auditor.

2.0 CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

2.1 Agenda

ARAC meetings will include 'Conflict of Interest' as a standing item. In instances where there is a declaration of interest in any of the agenda items, members will be asked to leave the meeting while those items are being discussed. In instances where the conflict of interest is likely to be ongoing the member may be asked to stand down from the ARAC.

2.1.1 Items for any other business should be formally submitted in advance of the meeting however, items submitted on the day will be dealt with as far as possible.

2.2 Frequency of Meetings

2.2.1 Routine meetings are to be held four times per year with a specific remit as the core of each meeting further. Meetings may be arranged at the discretion of the Chair, as necessary.

The Secretary to the ARAC shall, upon request of the Chair or any other member or by the Board's External Auditor, call a meeting of the ARAC by either letter, email or telephone giving at least three working days' notice

2.3 <u>Complaints Matters</u>

2.3.1 Complaints will be reviewed by the ARAC in line with good practice.

Appendix

Management of Risks

The Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARAC) has an important role in the governance framework. A key aspect of this is to ensure that the risk management arrangements are in place and effective. The ARAC does this through the oversight of the management of the organisational Risk Register. This responsibility is undertaken on behalf of the Probation Board for Northern Ireland ('the Board').

The Board has decided that an important mechanism for the delivery of the Strategic Priorities included in the Corporate Plan 2020-23 is for the Corporate Resources and the Policy and Practice Committees to consider the implications of the identified risks within their respective responsibilities. The Committees will inform the ARAC of their deliberations and any conclusions reached. This responsibility will be undertaken as part of the oversight arrangements.

After each ARAC meeting, the Chair will report to the Board on how effectively the risk management arrangements are working.

Appendix C: Terms of Reference of Policy and Practice Committee

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY BOARD – 21 FEBRUARY 2020 – EFFECTIVE 1 APRIL 2020

PROBATION BOARD FOR NORTHERN IRELAND

POLICY & PRACTICE COMMITTEE (PPC)

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Constitution

The Board has established a Policy and Practice Committee. The Committee has no executive powers other than those, which from time to time, may be specifically delegated to it by the Board.

Purpose

The purpose of the Committee is to provide assurance that PBNI has the appropriate policies in place, aligned with best practice exercised by the professional staff, to meet the strategic priorities, as set out in the Corporate Plan 2020-23; and to meet the statutory and other responsibilities.

Objectives

The Committee will:

- 1. Review policies to provide assurance to the Board that they are fit for purpose.
- 2. Keep under systematic review PBNI's principal business areas, using data analysis, research and presentations, as judged appropriate.
- 3. Promote partnership and collaboration with partners and other appropriate stakeholders in the wider system on rehabilitation and prevention of reoffending.
- 4. Encourage innovation and problem solving in service delivery
- 5. Encourage, promote and disseminate evaluation and research to allow the Board to shape and influence Criminal Justice policy and practice.
- 6. Monitor and report to the Board on performance against the annual Business Plan
- 7. Consider other matters referred to the Committee by the Board

Reporting

The Committee will report formally to the Board after each meeting. All decisions of the Committee are subject to the approval of the Board.

Membership

The Chair, Vice Chair and members of the Committee will be appointed by the Board. Membership will consist of 5 Board members, inclusive of the Chair and Vice Chair. In addition, the Board Chair will be an ex officio member of the Committee. Other members who have an interest in any Agenda item are welcome to attend in an ex officio capacity. The lead official will be Director of Rehabilitation and other officials will attend by invitation depending on the Committee's business. The Committee will be serviced by the Board Secretariat.

Meetings

There will be a minimum of 3 meetings of PPC per annum.

Quorum

*Two (2) members need to be present for the meeting to be quorate. In the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair those present will appoint a Chair from within their number.

Conflicts of Interest

Committee members are responsible for advising of any potential conflicts of interest at the beginning of each meeting.

Agenda and Papers

The responsibility for approving the agenda rests with the Chair of the Committee. A draft Agenda will be prepared by the Secretariat .

The Agenda and Papers will be circulated by the Secretariat 5 working days in advance of the meeting.

Review Arrangements

The Board will keep the Terms of Reference under review and will undertake a formal review biennially.

*The Board approved the quorum to be two in September 2020

Appendix D: Terms of Reference of Corporate Resources Committee

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY BOARD – 21 FEBRUARY 2020 – EFFECTIVE 1 APRIL 2020

PROBATION BOARD FOR NORTHERN IRELAND

CORPORATE RESOURCE COMMITTEE (CRC)

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Constitution

The Board has established a Corporate Resource Committee to support the work of the Board. The Committee has no executive powers other than those which, from time to time, may be specifically delegated to it by the Board.

Purpose

The purpose of the Committee is to provide assurance that the appropriate arrangements are in place for the delivery of the Board's strategic objectives, as set out in the Corporate Plan 2020-23; and to meet the statutory and other responsibilities.

Objectives

The mandate of the Corporate Resource Committee includes monitoring and reviewing the following functions and providing advice and/or recommendations to the Board on them:

- 1. The annual budget setting and in year budget review processes
- 2. Trends in workload and resource distribution
- 3. Efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of the probation service (including the approach to IT, Estates and HR Management)
- 4. Workforce planning and HR Strategy
- 5. Developing and valuing staff
- 6. In year financial management in line with Managing Public Money NI.
- 7. Any other matters referred to the Committee by the Board.

Reporting

The Committee will report formally to the Board after each meeting. All decisions of the Committee are subject to the approval of the Board.

Membership

The Chair, Vice Chair and members of Corporate Resource Committee will be appointed by the Board. Membership will consist of 5 Board members, inclusive of the Chair and Vice Chair. In addition, the Board Chair will be an ex officio member of the Committee. The lead officials will be the Head of Finance and the Head of HR and other officials will attend by invitation depending on the Committee's business. The Committee will be serviced by the Board Secretariat.

Meetings

There will be a minimum of 3 meetings of CPC per annum.

Quorum

Two (2) members need to be present for the meeting to be quorate. In the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair those present will appoint a Chair from within their number.

Conflicts of Interest

Committee Members are responsible for advising of any potential conflicts of interest at the beginning of each meeting.

Agenda and Papers

The responsibility for approving the agenda rests with the Chair of the Committee. A draft agenda will be prepared by the Secretariat for approval.

The Agenda and Papers will be circulated by the Secretariat 5 working days in advance of the meeting.

Review Arrangements

The Board will keep the Terms of Reference under review and will undertake a formal review biennially.

Appendix E: Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY BOARD – 21 FEBRUARY 2020

PROBATION BOARD FOR NORTHERN IRELAND

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

Constitution

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee. The Committee has no executive powers other than those, which from time to time, may be specifically delegated to it by the Board.

Purpose

The purpose of the Committee is to approve the annual objectives for the Chief Executive, consider performance (following receipt of a report from the Board Chair) and make recommendations to the Board on the appropriate performance pay remit. The Committee will also consider and make recommendations to the Board on matters relating to staff's terms and conditions, referred to it under HR procedures.

Objectives

The Committee will:

- 1. Approve the annual objectives for the Chief Executive
- 2. Assess the performance of the Chief Executive to make recommendations for pay remit.
- 3. Consider matters relating to the staff's terms and conditions of service, as judged necessary
- 4. Consider matters referred to the Remuneration Committee through the relevant HR Policies and Procedures, such as Early and Flexible Retirement Requests.

Reporting

The Committee will report formally to the Board after each meeting. All decisions of the Committee are subject to the approval of the Board.

Membership

The Chair and Deputy Chair of the Board, and Chair of the Policy and Practice Committee and Chair of the Corporate Resources Committee and substitute members as the Chair sees fit. The lead official will be the Head of HR. The Committee will be serviced by the Board Secretary.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee will be convened, as required, but will meet at least once each financial year.

Quorum

Two (2) members need to be present for the meeting to be quorate.

Conflicts of Interest

Committee members are responsible for advising of any potential conflicts of interest at the beginning of each meeting.

Agenda and Papers

The responsibility rests with the Chair of the Committee (the Board Chair). A draft Agenda will be prepared by the Secretariat and this will be discussed and agreed with the Chair.

The Agenda and Papers will be circulated by the Secretariat 5 working days in advance of the meeting.

Review Arrangements

The Board will keep the Terms of Reference under review and will undertake reviews biennially.